PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET
Survey #: P.G. #82A-24 Building Date: 1925

Building Name: Cheltenham Schoolhouse

Location: 10411 01d Indian Head Road, Cheltenham, Maryland

Private/Residence/Occupied/Excellent/Inaccessible

Descrigtion:

The Cheltenham schoolhouse is a one-story (with basement) hip-roofed
two-room schoolhouse, typical of the larger schoolhouses constructed in
Prince George's County in the 1920's. In recent years, it has been con-
verted into two apartments; the entrance and fenestration have, therefore,
been considerably altered, and the northern section of the basement has been
converted into a garage. Originally, one entered the building through the
projecting gabled entryway in the center of the main (east) facade, and went
up a short flight of steps to either of the two large classrooms. These
classrooms were lighted on the east facade by banks of twelve foot high
windows. The rear walls of the classrooms were covered by blackboards, and
had no windows. Since 1950, the Cheltenham schoolhouse has been converted
into two apartments. The projecting entryway now has a door with transom and
sidelights. The tall classroom windows have been replaced by two modern 8/8
windows (with shutters) on each side of the entry. The siding on the front
of the building is vinyl, and on the sides and rear is asbestos shingle.
There is a new synthetic shingle roof. The building rests on a high concrete
basement foundation.

Significance:

The Cheltenham schoolhouse is typical of the more substantial two-room
schools built in Prince George's County in the 1920's. It was constructed in
1925 to replace the two small schoolhouses which had for many years stood on
the adjoining property. These buildings were maintained by the Board of
County School Commissioners until they were virtually destroyed by a severe
windstorm in 1924, In November of that year, the Board of Education (which
had superseded the Board of County School Commissioners in 1921) ordered that
two acres be purchased for the construction of a new two-room building, and
that the old lot be sold. Accordingly two acres were purchased from Herbert
Grow, and the new school house (known as School #2, District #11) was con-
structed in 1925. The new Cheltenham School was one of the more substantial
rural schoolhouses in Prince George's County, with two large, well-lighted
classrooms, and a full basement. It served as a school until 1945, when it
was closed and sold to the Marlboro post of the American Legion, which used
it as a meeting place for several years. In 1950 it was sold to the present
owner, who has converted the two classrooms into two apartments, and the
north section of the basement into a garage. Although the building retains
its original schoolhouse lines, its entrance and fenestration are completely
altered, and its appearance is a mere suggestion of its original function.

Acreage: 2 acres




Survey No. P.G. #82A-24

. . Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no
1. Name {indicate preferred name)
historic  Cheltenham Schoolhouse (School #2, District #11)
and/or common
2. Location
street & number 10411 01d Indian Head Road — not for publication
Cheltenham

city, town  Upper Mariboro — vicinity of congressional district 5
state Maryland county Prince George's
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district — public — occupied __ agriculture — museum
— building(s) ____ private — unoccupied ——_ commercial — park
— structure — both —— work in progress —_ educational __ private residence
—_ site Public Acquisition Accessible __ entertainment — religious

—_ object — in process —__vyes: restricted —— government __ scientific

—— being considered ___yes: unrestricted — industrial __ transportation
___not applicable _  po ___ military —__ other:

4. owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Leonard Furgang
street & number 11313 Maryvale Road telephone mo. : 627-3815
city, town UPPEYT Mariboro, state and zip code Maryland 20772
S. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frince George's County Courthouse liber 1284
street & number Main Street folio 416
city, town Upper Mariboro, state MD. 20772
6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys
title Prince George's County Inventory of Historic Sites
date 1974 —federal ____ state Lcounty — local
«epository for survey records History Division, M-NCPPC

Riverdale MD. 20737

city, town state

- ———— ————— —



7. Description Survey No. P.G. #82A-24

Condition Check one Check one

X__ excelient ____ deteriorated ____ unaltered __X_original site

____good ____ruins _X_altered ____moved date of move
—fair ____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Cheltenham schoolhouse is a one-story (with basement) hip-roofed
two-room schoolhouse, typical of the larger schoolhouses constructed in
Prince George's County in the 1920's. In recent years, it has been con-
verted into two apartments; the entrance and fenestration hae, therefore,
been considerably altered, and the northern section of the basement has
been converted into a garage.

Originally, one entered the building through the projecting gabled
entryway in the center of the main (east) facade, and went up a short
flight of steps to either of the two large classrooms. These classrooms
were lighted on the east facade by banks of twelve foot high windows. The
rear walls of the classrooms were covered by blackboards, and had no
windows.

Since 1950, the Cheltenham schoolhouse has been converted into two
apartments. The projecting entryway now has a door with transom and side-
lights. The tall classroom windows have been replaced by two modern 8/8
windows (with shutters) on each side of the entry. The siding on the front
of the building is vinyl, and on the sides and rear is asbestos shingle.
There is a new synthetic shingle roof. The building rests on a high con-
crete basement foundation.



8. Significance Survey No. P.G. #82A-24
Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
- prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
—1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —___ conservation — law —___science
—1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___ economics — literature — sculpture
— 1600-1699 ___ architecture education — military —___ social/
— 1700-1799 ___ art —___engineering — muslc humanitarian
1800-1899 ___ commerce — - exploration/settlement ___ philosophy - theater
—_X_ 1900- —___ communications — industry — politics/government transportation
—___invention X other (specify)
“Tocal history
Specific dates 1925 Builder/Architect Thomas A. Garner
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B _C D
and/or

Applicable Exception: _ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national __ state __ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Cheltenham schoolhouse is typical of the more substantial two-room
schools built in Prince George's County in the 1920's. It was constructed
in 1925 to replace the two small schoolhouses which had for many years
stood on the adjoining property. There had been a schoolhouse at the old
location since before the establishment of the Board of County School Com-
missioners in 1865; it was replaced circa 1882 by two buildings, one of
which housed the primary grades, and the other the intermediate grades.
These buildings were maintained by the Board of Commissioners until they
were virtually destroyed by a severe windstorm in 1924, In November of
that year, the Board of Education (which had su_perseded the Board of
County School Commissioners in 1921) ordered that two acres be purchased
for the construction of a new two-room building, and that the old lot be
sold. Accordingly two acres were purchased from Herbert Grow, and the new
school house (known as School #2, District #11) was constructed in the
following year.1 Thomas A. Garner of Croom was contracted to complete
construction of the building before the first of September 1925, for the
cost of $5,740. The new schoolhouse was to be covered with asbestos
shingles painted French gray with white trim; a used furnace from the old
Surratts school was to be installed in the basement.

The new Cheltenham School was one of the more substantial rural
schoolhouses in Prince George's County, with two large, well-lighted class-
rooms, and a full basement. It served as a school until 1945, when it was
closed and sold to the Marlboro post of the American Legion, which used it
as a meeting place for several years. In 1950 it was sold to the present
owner, who has converted the two classrooms into two attractive and
comfortable apartments, and the north section of the basement into a
garage.” Although the building retains the lines of its original school-
house form, its entrance and fenestration are completely altered, and its appearance
a mere suggestion of its original function.



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. P.G. #82A-24

See chain of title
See notes, item #8

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property ___2 3Cres

Quadrangle name ___ Brandywine, Section B Quadrangle scale

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

Susan G. Pearl, research historian

name/title
organization Historic Preservation Commission date February 1985
street & number C/0 County Planning Division, M-NCPPC telephone 952-3521

County Administration Building,
city or town Upper Marlboro, state Maryland 20772

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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8. Continued
Notes:

1 P.G. Board of Education, Journal, Vol. III p. 57;
P.G. County Deed #224:187; interview with owner.

2 Closed school files, Department of Plant Maintenance, P.G. County
Public Schools.

3 P.G. County Deeds #904:293; #1284:416
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|7. DESCRIPTION _
(Check One)
CONDITION L Excoliont —E-Go"d 0 Feir £ Deteriorated ] R“;",’ {J ‘Unexposed
{Check One) (Check One)
BS Altered: [D Unclrered ) Moved Original Site
CESCRIBE THE PRESENT 4 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The building is one story, frame house that has been

turned into a residence. The five bay facade has a central

entrance porch; the doorway has sidelights and a transom

light divided from the doorway by a small canopy.
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;§‘~M#JOR BiBLIOGRAPYICAL REFERENCES - - =

[10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COCRDINATES P
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY 0

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATYTES
DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY

R - OF LESS THAMN TEN ACRES
GORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Secorfds | Degroes Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds

NW ° . . ° . » o ’ . ° . .
NE o - . . o . .
SE. o . . ° . »
oW ° . . o ’ .

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

‘Acreage Justification:

i

[11. FORM PREPARED BY

NAME AND TITLE:
Christopher Owens, Park Historian

ORGANIZATION DATE

MNCPPC 19 Sept 74

STREET AND NUMBER:

8787 Georgia Avenue

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Silver Spring Mnry] angd

(Office Use Only)

~JState Liaison Officer Review:

Significance of this property is:
(0] State [ Local ([

National

Signature
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#1284:416
14 Sept 1950
Deed

#904:293
8 Nov 1946
Deed

#224:.187
18 Nov 1924
Deed

Chain of Title

Cheltenham Schoolhouse
P.G, #82A-24

Marlboro Post #115 of American Legion to Leonard and
Mary Furgang; 2 acres which grantor acquired hy
#904:283.

Roard of Education of Prince George's County, to
Marlboro Post #115 of American Legion; 2 acres which
the Board of Education acquired hy #224:187.

Herbert E. Grow, et ux. to Board of Education of Prince
George's County; 2 acres, beginning at the intersection
of the public road from Rosaryville to Cheltenham and
the private road leading to the property of Frnest
Furgang; (part of a tract which grantor acquired by
#172:337)
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P.G. #82A-24
Cheltenham Schoolhouse
Prince George's County, MD.
Susan G. Pear]

February 1985
East elevation
Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, MD.






P,G. # 82A-24
Cheltenham Schoolhouse
Prince George's County, MD.
Susan G. Pearl
February 1985

West elevation
Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, MD.
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